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NOTICE 
 

NOTICE is hereby given that the THIRTY FIFTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Members of 

National General Industries Limited (CIN : L74899DL1987PLC026617) will be held on Thursday, the 

30th September, 2021 at 01.30 p.m. through Video Conferencing (VC) or Other Audio Visual Means 

(OAVM), to transact the following business: 

 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the 

financial year ended 31 March, 2021, the Report of the Board of Directors’ and Auditors’ 

thereon. 

 

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Vasu Modi (DIN : 00051696) who retires by rotation at this 

Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 

 

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

3. To appoint Mr. Manhar Modi (DIN : 00051746) as Director and in this regard to consider and if 

thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as an ORDINARY RESOLUTION: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 161, readwith applicable provisions, if 

any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules and regulations made thereunder, Mr. Manhar Modi 

(DIN : 00051746), be and is hereby appointed as Director of the Company, liable to retire by 

rotation.” 

 

4. To revise the terms and conditions of appointment of Mr. Pawan Kumar Modi (DIN : 00051679), 

Managing Director and in this regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following 

resolution as an ORDINARY RESOLUTION: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 196, 197, 198 and 203 readwith Schedule V 

and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules and regulations 

made thereunder, including any statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof for the time 

being in force, and in terms of recommendation by Nomination & Remuneration Committee of 

the Company, consent of the Board be and is hereby accorded, for alteration in the existing 

terms and conditions of appointment of Mr. Pawan Kumar Modi (DIN : 00051679), Managing 

Director of the Company, for enabling the Company to pay monthly remuneration of Rs. 

1,00,000/- (Rupees One Lakh only) per month, w.e.f. 1st April, 2021, in accordance with such 

structure and component, as per the remuneration policy of the Company. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized 

to alter and vary the terms and conditions of appointment and / or remuneration, subject to the 

same not exceeding the limits specified under Section 197, read with Schedule V of the 

Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactments(s) thereof, for 

the time being in force).” 

By Order of the Board 

For NATIONAL GENERAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

         

                           Sd/-     

Place : New Delhi                                     Vandana Gupta 

Date  : 13.08.2021                      Company Secretary 

Memb. No. : ACS 24012 
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NOTES: 

 

1. As you are aware, in view of the situation arising due to COVID-19 global pandemic, the general 

meetings of the companies shall be conducted as per the guidelines issued by the Ministry of 

Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, Circular No.17/2020 

dated April 13, 2020 and Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020. In continuation of MCA 

General Circular No. 20/2020, dated 05th May, 2020 and after due examination, MCA vide its 

General Circular No. 02/2021 dated January 13, 2021 has allowed companies whose AGMs were 

due to be held in the year 2020, or become due in the year 2021, to conduct their AGMs on or 

before 31.12.2021, in accordance with the requirements provided in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the 

General Circular No. 20/2020. The forthcoming AGM will thus be held through video 

conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means (OAVM).  Hence, Members can attend and 

participate in the ensuing AGM through VC/OAVM. The deemed venue of the AGM shall be the 

registered office of the Company. 

2. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the 

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of 

SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and MCA 

Circulars dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020, May 05, 2020 and January 13, 2021 the Company 

is providing facility of remote e-voting to its Members in respect of the business to be 

transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with 

Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) for facilitating voting through electronic 

means, as the authorized e-Voting’s agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using 

remote e-voting as well as the e-voting system on the date of the AGM will be provided by 

CDSL. 

3. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the 

scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in 

the Notice. The facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available to 

atleast 1000 members on first come first served basis. This will not include large Shareholders 

(Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, 

Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are 

allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on account of first come first served basis. 

4. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the 

purpose of ascertaining the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

5. Pursuant to MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, the facility to appoint proxy to 

attend and cast vote for the members is not available for this AGM and hence the Proxy Form 

and Attendance Slip including Route Map are not annexed to this notice.  

6. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, 

the Notice calling the AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at 

www.modisteel.com. The Notice can also be accessed from the websites of the Stock Exchanges 

i.e. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com.  The AGM Notice is also disseminated on the website of 

CDSL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility and e-voting system during the AGM) 

i.e. www.evotingindia.com. 

7. The AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, MCA Circular No. 

17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, MCA Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020 and MCA Circular 

No. 02/2021 dated January 13, 2021. 

8. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act), in 

regard to the business as set out in Item Nos. 3 to 4 above, are annexed hereto. 
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9. The requirement to place the matter relating to appointment of Statutory Auditors for 

ratification by members at every Annual General Meeting is done away with vide The 

Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017 (No. 1 of 2018) readwith notification dated May 7, 2018 

issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, New Delhi. Accordingly, no resolution is proposed 

for ratification of appointment of Statutory Auditors of the Company, who were appointed at 

the Annual General Meeting, held on 26
th

 September, 2017 to hold office from the conclusion of 

said Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 36
th

 Annual General Meeting in the year 

2022. 
10. In terms of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Shri Vasu Modi, (DIN : 00051696), Director 

of the Company, retires by rotation at the Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for re-

appointment. The Board of Directors of the Company, commends his re-appointment.  

11. Details of Directors retiring by rotation and recommended for reappointed as Directors as well 

as Additional Directors proposed to be appointed as Director, as required to be provided 

pursuant to the provisions of (i) the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and (ii) Secretarial Standard on General 

Meeting (SS-2), issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, has been provided 

elsewhere, which form part of this report.  

12. In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order 

of names will be entitled to vote. 

13. Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the Statements are open for 

inspection by the members at the Registered Office of the Company on all working days, during 

business hours up to the date of the meeting. 

14. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 

Saturday, 25
th

 September, 2021 to Thursday, 30
th

 September, 2021 (both days inclusive). 

15. SEBI has in its Board meeting held on March 28, 2018 decided that except in case of 

transmission or transposition, requests for effecting transfer of securities of listed companies 

shall not be processed unless the securities are held in dematerialised form with a Depository 

with effect from 5
th

 December, 2018. In view of the above, members holding shares in physical 

form are requested to consider converting their holdings to dematerialized form.  

16. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding, maintained 

under Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013 and The Register of Contracts or Arrangements 

in which the Directors are interested, maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 

will be available for inspection through electronic mode by the members at the AGM. 

17. Members who are holding shares in physical form are requested to notify the change in their 

respective addresses, e-mail ID or Bank details to the Registrar and Transfer Agents (RTA) and 

always quote their Folio Numbers in all correspondence with the Company and RTA. In respect 

of holding in electronic form, Members are requested to notify any change in addresses, e-mail 

ID or Bank details to their respective Depository Participants. 

 

The instructions for shareholders for remote e-voting are as under: 

(i) The voting period begins on on Sunday, 26th September, 2021 (10.00 a.m. IST) and ends on 

Wednesday, 29th September, 2021 (5.00 p.m. IST). During this period shareholders’ of the 

Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off 

date (record date) of 24
th

 September, 2021 may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting 

module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter. 

(ii) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at 

the meeting venue. 

(iii) Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under 

Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed entities are required to provide remote e-voting facility 

to its shareholders, in respect of all shareholders’ resolutions. However, it has been observed 
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that the participation by the public non-institutional shareholders/retail shareholders is at a 

negligible level.  

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to listed 

entities in India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of multiple user 

IDs and passwords by the shareholders.  

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has 

been decided to enable e-voting to all the DEMAT account holders, by way of a single login 

credential, through their DEMAT accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants. 

DEMAT account holders would be able to cast their vote without having to register again with 

the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless authentication but also enhancing ease and 

convenience of participating in e-voting process. 

(iv) In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on e-

Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in 

DEMAT mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories 

and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email 

Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 

Pursuant to above said SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for 

Individual shareholders holding securities in DEMAT mode is given below: 

Type of 

shareholders 

Login Method 

Individual 

Shareholders 

holding 

securities in 

Demat mode 

with CDSL 

1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their 

existing user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-

Voting page without any further authentication. The URL for users to login 

to Easi / Easiest are https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or visit 

www.cdslindia.com and click on Login icon and select New System Myeasi. 

2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting 

option for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as per the 

information provided by company. On clicking the evoting option, the user 

will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for casting 

your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & 

voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links provided to 

access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers i.e. 

CDSL/NSDL/KARVY/LINKINTIME, so that the user can visit the e-Voting 

service providers’ website directly. 

3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration 

4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat 

Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on 

 www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the user by 

sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat 

Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-

Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able to directly 

access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers. 
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Individual 

Shareholders 

holding 

securities in 

DEMAT 

mode with 

NSDL 

1) If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-

Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 

https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 

Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial 

Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section. A new 

screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID and Password. After 

successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services. Click on 

“Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-

Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and 

you will be re-directed to e-Voting service provider website for casting your 

vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting 

during the meeting. 

2) If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is 

available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for IDeAS 

“Portal or click at https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp  

3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 

following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 

Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is 

launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 

‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to 

enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit DEMAT account number hold with 

NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After 

successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site 

wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting 

service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service 

provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or 

joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting 

Individual 

Shareholders 

(holding 

securities in 

DEMAT 

mode) login 

through 

their 

Depository 

Participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your DEMAT account through 

your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility.  

After Successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click 

on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after 

successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on 

company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected 

to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the remote 

e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use 

Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in DEMAT mode for any technical issues 

related to login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL 

Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in DEMAT mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 

contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 

23058738 and 22-23058542-43. 

Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in DEMAT mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 

contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at 

evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 

990 and 1800 22 44 30   
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(v)  Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than individual 

shareholders holding in DEMAT form & physical shareholders. 

1) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com. 

2) Click on “Shareholders” module. 

3) Now enter your User ID  

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,  

b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,  

c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with 

the Company. 

4) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login. 

5) If you are holding shares in DEMAT form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and 

voted on an earlier e-voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.  

6) If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below: 

For Shareholders holding shares in Demat Form other than individual and Physical Form 

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department 

(Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders) 

• Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the 

Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the sequence 

number sent by Company/RTA or contact Company/RTA. 

Dividend 

Bank Details 

OR  

Date of Birth 

(DOB) 

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as 

recorded in your DEMAT account or in the company records in order to login. 

• If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company, 

please enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details 

field as mentioned in instruction (v). 

(vi) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab. 

(vii) Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection 

screen. However, shareholders holding shares in DEMAT form will now reach ‘Password 

Creation’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new 

password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the DEMAT holders for 

voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that 

company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your 

password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential. 

(viii) For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-
voting on the resolutions contained in this Notice. 

(ix) Click on the EVSN for the relevant <Company Name> on which you choose to vote. 

(x) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option 

“YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you 

assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution. 

(xi) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details. 

(xii) After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation 

box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, 

click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote. 

(xiii) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

(xiv) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the 

Voting page. 

(xv) If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the 

image verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the 

system. 
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(xvi) Facility for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians –Remote Voting 

• Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are 

required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the “Corporates” 

module. 

• A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be 

emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. 

• After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login 

and password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish 

to vote on. 

• The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com 

and on approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.  

• A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have 

issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for 

the scrutinizer to verify the same. 

• Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board 

Resolution/ Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly 

authorized signatory who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at 

the email address viz; cs@modisteel.net, if they have voted from individual tab & not 

uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same. 

 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM & E-VOTING 

DURING MEETING ARE AS UNDER: 

1. The procedure for attending meeting & e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the 

instructions mentioned above for Remote e-voting. 

2. The link for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will be available where the EVSN of Company will 

be displayed after successful login as per the instructions mentioned above for Remote e-

voting. 

3. Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the 

meeting. However, they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM. 

4. Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / IPads for better 

experience. 

5. Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to 

avoid any disturbance during the meeting. 

6. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop 

connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their 

respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to 

mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 

7. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may 

register themselves as a speaker by sending their request in advance atleast 7 days prior to 

meeting mentioning their name, DEMAT account number/folio number, email id, mobile 

number at (company email id). The shareholders who do not wish to speak during the AGM 

but have queries may send their queries in advance7 days prior to meeting mentioning their 

name, DEMAT account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at (company email 

id). These queries will be replied to by the company suitably by email.  

8. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to 

express their views/ask questions during the meeting. 

9. Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have 

not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not 

barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system available during the 

AGM. 
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10. If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the AGM and 

if the same shareholders have not participated in the meeting through VC/OAVM facility, 

then the votes cast by such shareholders shall be considered invalid as the facility of e-voting 

during the meeting is available only to the shareholders attending the meeting. 

 

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL ADDRESSES ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH THE 

DEPOSITORIES FOR OBTAINING LOGIN CREDENTIALS FOR E-VOTING FOR THE RESOLUTIONS 

PROPOSED IN THIS NOTICE:  

1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, 

scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN 

card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to Company/RTA email id 

at cs@modisteel.net / info@skylinerta.com. 

2. For Demat shareholders - Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective 

Depository Participant (DP)  

3. For Individual Demat shareholders – Please update your email id & mobile no. with your 

respective Depository Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting & joining virtual 

meetings through Depository. 

If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting 

System, you can write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 23058738 and 

022-23058542/43. 

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. 

Rakesh Dalvi, Sr. Manager, (CDSL, ) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, 

Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 

or send an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call  on 022-23058542/43. 

18. Other Instructions: 

a. The e-voting period commences on Sunday, 26
th

 September, 2021 (10.00 a.m. IST) and ends 

on Wednesday, 29
th

 September, 2021 (5.00 p.m. IST). During this period, Members of the 

Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on Friday, 24
th

 

September, 2021, may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled 

by CDSL for voting thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the Member, he shall 

not be allowed to change it subsequently. 

b. The voting rights of Members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity 

share capital of the Company as on Friday, 24
th

 September, 2021. 

c. M/s. Deepak Bansal & Associates, Practicing Company Secretary (FCS No. : 3736 and C. P. 

No. : 7433), has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting process in a fair 

and transparent manner. 

d. The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after conclusion of voting at the annual general meeting, 

make, not later than 48 hours from the conclusion of the meeting, scrutinizer’s report of the 

total vote cast in favour and against, if any, to the Chairman, or an authorized person by 

him, of the Company.  

e. The results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the Company’s 

website www.modisteel.com and on the website of CDSL and communicated to the BSE 

Limited, where shares of the Company are listed. 
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DETAILS OF DIRECTORS PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF (I) THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE 

BOARD OF INDIA (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015 

AND (II) SECRETARIAL STANDARD ON GENERAL MEETING (SS-2), ISSUED BY THE INSTITUTE OF 

COMPANY SECRETARIES OF INDIA  

 

Name of Director Mr. Vasu Modi Mr. Pawan Kumar 

Modi 

Mr. Manhar Modi 

DIN Number 00051696 00051679 00051766 

Date of Birth 11-06-1980 01-10-1957 16-09-1983 

Date of Appointment 10-04-2000 08-01-1987 30-06-2021 

Expertise in Specific 

functional area 

Experience in 

business 

development and 

marketing. 

Wide experience in 

technical and 

finance field. 

Wide experience in 

sales and 

marketing. 

Qualification B.B.A. B.Sc.(H) B.BA 

Directorship in other 

Public Limited Company  

(As on 31.03.2021) 

Avlokiteshvar Valinv 

Ltd. 

Not Applicable Not Applicable 

Chairman/Member of 

Committee in other  

public limited company 

(As on 31.03.2021) 

Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable 

Shareholding in the Company  

(As on 31.03.2021) 

3,59,745 

(6.51%) 

2,71,770 

(4.91%) 

4,12,798 

(7.46%) 

Remuneration last drawn from 

the Company 

Nil Nil Nil 

Remuneration to be paid Nil Rs. 1 Lakh per 

month 

Nil 

Numbers of Board attended 

during the year 2020-21 

7 7 Nil 

 

STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (“the Act”)  

The following Statements sets out all material facts relating to the Special Business mentioned in the 

accompanying notice. 
 

ITEM NO. 3 

The Board of Directors of the Company appointed, pursuant to provision of Section 161(1) of the Act 

and Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Manhar Modi (DIN : 00051746) as an Additional 

Director of the Company with effect from 30
th

 June, 2021. In terms of the provisions of Section 

161(1) of the Act, Mr. Manhar Modi, would hold office up to the date of ensuing Annual General 

Meeting.  

 

The Company has received a notice in writing from a member under Section 160 of the Act 

proposing the candidature of Mr. Manhar Modi, for office of Director of Company. Mr. Manhar 

Modi, is not disqualified from being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 of the Act and 

has given his consent to act as a Director of the Company. 

 

Keeping in view, his vast expertise and knowledge in the field of sales and marketing, it will be in the 

interest of the Company that Mr. Manhar Modi, is appointed as Director of the Company. 
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Save and except Mr. Manhar Modi, and his relatives, to the extent of their shareholding interest, if 

any, in the Company, none of the other Directors of the Company / their relatives are, in any way, 

concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 3 of the 

Notice. 

 

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 3 of the Notice for approval by 

the shareholders. 

 

ITEM NOS. 4 

 

Mr. Pawan Kumar Modi (DIN : 00051679) aged 63 years has served the Company as Managing 

Director of the Company since the year 2000. He is a science graduate having working experience of 

more than 35 years in the steel and allied industries. 
 

The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on 14
th

 April, 2021 has on the 

recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, and subject to approval of 

shareholders in forthcoming meeting approved alteration in the existing terms and conditions of 

appointment of Mr. Pawan Kumar Modi (DIN : 00051679), Managing Director of the Company, for 

enabling the Company to pay monthly remuneration of Rs. 1,00,000/- (Rupees One Lakh only) per 

month, w.e.f. 1st April, 2021, in accordance with such structure and component, as per the 

remuneration policy of the Company.  In view of expertise and experience of Mr. Pawan Kumar 

Modi, Managing Director of the Company, it will be in the interest of the Company to make the 

aforesaid changes in terms of appointment of Mr. Pawan Kumar Modi.  

 

Except Mr. Pawan Kumar Modi, Managing Director of the Company, and holding 2,71,770 numbers 

of  shares equivalent to 4.91 % of voting power, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 

of the Company and their relatives is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the 

resolution set out at Item No. 4. 

 

The Board commends the resolution for approval of shareholders by ORDINARY RESOLUTION. 

 

By Order of the Board 

For NATIONAL GENERAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

         

                           Sd/-     

Place : New Delhi                                     Vandana Gupta 

Date  : 13.08.2021                      Company Secretary 

Memb. No. : ACS 24012 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
Dear Members, 

 

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Thirty Fifth Annual Report of your Company along 

with the Audited Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31
st

 March, 2021. 

 

FINANCIAL RESULTS  

The financial performance of the Company for the financial year ended on 31
st

 March, 2021 and          

31
st

 March, 2020 are summarized below:- 

(Amount in Rupees) 

Particulars 
    For the year ended 

    31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20 

INCOME: 
 

      

Revenue from operations 
 

     185,763,668    196,014,089 

Other Income 
 

         69,302,485        3,600,803 

  
 

     255,066,153    199,614,892  

EXPENSES: 
 

      

Cost of materials consumed 
 

     176,902,025    171,369,516 

Purchase of Stock-in-Trade 
 

      

Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and 

Stock-in-Trade 
     (5,123,165)      4,294,556 

Employee benefit expense 
 

       11,233,873      15,211,640 

Financial costs 
 

         1,463,788        2,418,708 

Depreciation and amortization expense 
 

         4,198,581         5,025,921  

Other expenses 
 

       9,660,793      10,572,766 

  
 

     198,335,894     208,893,106 

Profit before exceptional  items and tax 
 

         56,730,258      (9,278,214) 

Exceptional Items 
 

                      -                        -    

PROFIT BEFORE TAX 
 

         56,730,258     (9,278,214) 

TAX EXPENSES: 
 

      

  Current tax 
 

        -       - 

  Current tax - Prior Year 
 

  -              (36,362)   

  MAT Credit 
 

                      -                       -   

  MAT Credit - Prior Year 
 

                      -                       -   

  Deferred tax 
 

       (1,312,351)         (333,762) 

Profit for the period from continuing operations  
 

         58,042,609     (8,908,090) 

PROFIT AFTER TAX 
 

         58,042,609       (8,908,090)  

Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) 
 

      

 (A)Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss 
 

  - - 

 (B)Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 
 

         11,912,872    (10,206,549) 

Income tax relating to this 
 

          1,943,241      2,653,703 

Total  Other Comprehensive Income/(loss) for the year 
 

         9,969,631      (7,552,846) 

Total Comprehensive Income/(loss) for the year 
 

       68,012,240   (16,460,936) 
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS 

The Highlights of the Company’s performance for the year ended on March 31, 2021 are as under: 

 Value of Sales and Services decreased by 5.23% to Rs. 1857.64 lakhs (PY Rs. 1960.14 lakhs). 

 Value of Other Income increased to Rs. 134.23 lakhs (PY Rs. 36.01 lakhs) apart from Rs. 558.79 

lakhs on sale of steel casting unit. 

 PBDIT increased to Rs. 65.13 lakhs (PY loss of Rs. 18.33 lakhs) apart from Rs. 558.79 lakhs on 

sale of steel casting unit..  

 PBT increased to Rs. 8.51 lakhs (PY loss of Rs. 92.78 lakhs) apart from Rs. 558.79 lakhs on sale of 

steel casting unit. 

 Net Profit increased to Rs. 21.63 lakhs (PY loss of Rs. 89.08 lakhs) apart from Rs. 558.79 lakhs on 

sale of steel casting unit. 
 

BUSINESS IMPACT OF COVID – 19 

FY 2020-21 started on a difficult note due to the pandemic as lockdowns across the globe led to 

weakened consumption and decline in economic growth in Q1 FY 2020-21. However, with the 

synchronised monetary and fiscal policy measures, the Indian and global economy witnessed revival 

with improving business and consumer sentiment, together with higher demand and pricing. 

Infrastructure spending being one of the focus areas of governments, led to strong demand for steel 

and other metals globally. However, global economic recovery slackened in the latter part of CY 

2020 and the first quarter of CY 2021, as several countries battled with the second wave of COVID-19 

infections, especially the more deadly strains. With massive vaccination drives underway, risks to the 

recovery are expected to abate and economic activity may regain momentum in the second half of 

CY 2021. 

India’s economic growth, too, moderated due to weak domestic consumption, sluggish 

manufacturing and subdued investments. There was a swift revival of economic activity with the 

easing of lockdown restrictions in June 2020 and the subsequent opening up of the economy. 

Several high frequency economic indicators performed better than the initial expectations, pointing 

to a robust recovery. 

In India, the steel industry experienced a weak first quarter of FY 2020-21 due to the COVID-19 

induced slowdown that adversely impacted consumption and spending on infrastructure. However, 

the government implemented a series of measures to revive the economy, and the RBI pitched in 

with calibrated monetary policies to keep interest rates steady through the year. Together, these 

measures helped arrest the decline and put the economy back on the growth path. Amidst the 

fluctuations and uncertainties across the economic landscape in India and the world, the Company 

was able to deliver strong operational and financial performance during FY 2020-21. 

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS 

There was no change in the nature of business of your company during the year except that 

Company sold off is steel casting unit located at Bhiwadi with the approval of members of the 

Company. 
 

DIVIDEND 

Your Directors have not recommended dividend for the year ended 31
st
 March, 2021. 

 

TRANFER TO RESERVES 

The net movement in the Reserves of the Company is as under: 

Particulars         F.Y. 2020-21     F.Y. 2019-20  

General Reserve    Rs. 2,50,00,000/-  Rs.             Nil 

Decrease in Revaluation Reserve  Rs.         96,288/-  Rs.         96,288/- 

Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss  Rs. 3,30,42,609/-  Rs.   (89,08,090/-) 

Other Comprehensive Income   Rs.    61,84,776/-  Rs.   (72,52,846/-) 
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DEPOSITS FROM PUBLIC 

During the year under review, your Company did not invite / accept any Deposits from the public 

under section 73 and 74 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) 

Rules, 1975. 
 

ANNUAL RETURN 

The Annual Return of the Company for the year ended on 31
st
 March, 2021 has been uploaded on 

the website of the Company. It can be accessed under Investor Relations page at website of the 

Company i.e. www.modisteel.com 

 

NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS & ATTENDACE OF DIRECTORS 

During the Financial Year 2020-21, 7 (Seven) Board Meetings were held and the gap between two 

meetings did not exceed four months. The Board Meetings were held on 02.06.2020, 31.07.2020, 

05.09.2020, 12.11.2020, 23.11.2020, 21.01.2021 and 12.02.2021. 

 

The details of composition of the Board, the attendance record of the Directors at the Board 

Meetings held during the financial year ended on 31.03.2021 and at the last Annual General Meeting 

(AGM), and the details of their other Directorships and Committee Chairmanships and Memberships 

are given below: 

Number of Equity Shares held by Directors as on 31
st

 March, 2021 are as under:- 

 

DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

The Independent Directors of the Company are: 

• Mr. Anirudh Vimalkumar Goenka 

• Mr. Anantshri Gupta 

• Mrs. Sanjana Bharat 

The Company has received the declaration under section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 from 

the Independent Directors of the Company. In the opinion of the Board of Directors, all the 

Independent Directors are proficient and having expertise and acumen to shoulder the 

responsibilities conferred on the Independent Directors of the Company. 

In terms of Section 203 of the Act, the following are designated as Key Managerial Personnel of your 

Company by the Board: 

Category Name of Director  No. of 

Board 

Meeting 

attended 

Attendance 

at last AGM 

No. of 

Directorships in 

other Public 

Limited 

Companies 

No. of 

Chairmanship / 

Memberships of 

Committees in 

other Public 

Limited Companies 

Executive Shri Ashok Kumar Modi 7 No - - 

Shri Pawan Kumar Modi 7 Yes - - 

Non-Executive  

Non-independent  

Shri Vasu Modi 7 Yes 1 - 

Non-Executive  

Independent  

Shri Anirudh Vimalkumar 

Goenka  

6 Yes - - 

Shri Anantshri Gupta 5 No - - 

Smt. Sanjana Bharat 5 No - - 

Name of Director Designation Nos. of Equity Shares held 

Shri Ashok Kumar Modi Chairman & Managing Director 271770 

Shri Pawan Kumar Modi Joint Managing Director 271770 

Shri Vasu Modi Non-Executive Director 359745 

Shri Anirudh Vimalkumar Goenka Independent Director - 

Shri Anantshri Gupta Independent Director - 

Smt. Sanjana Bharat Independent Director - 
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• Mr. Ashok Kumar Modi, Managing Director  

• Mr. Pawan Kumar Modi, Joint Managing Director cum Chief Financial Officer 

• Mr. Vandana Gupta, Company Secretary 
 

In terms of section 196 of the Act, on recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee, the Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on 2
nd

 June, 2020 extended 

the terms of Mr. Ashok Kumar Modi, Managing Director and Mr. Pawan Kumar Modi, Joint 

Managing Director of the Company for five year i.e. upto on 3
rd

 July, 2025. 
 

Subsequently, Mr. Ashok Kumar Modi, Managing Director of the Company resigned from the 

Directorship of the Company w.e.f. 30
th

 June, 2021 and Mr. Manhar Modi was appointed as 

Additional Director designated as Non-Executive Director of the Company with effect from same 

date. The Board of Director of the Company has recommended his appointment as Director of the 

Company in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 
 

In terms of section 152 of the Act and applicable provisions of Articles of Association of the 

Company, Mr. Vasu Modi, Director retires by rotation and is eligible for re-appointment. The Board 

recommends his re-appointment as Director of the Company. 
 

The information as required to be disclosed under regulation 36(3) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 

2015 in case of appointment /re-appointment of the directors is provided in the Notice of the 

ensuing Annual General Meeting. 
 

AUDITORS & AUDITORS’ REPORT 

A. Statutory Auditors 

M/s. N. R. & Company, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No. : 015095C) were appointed as 

statutory auditors of the Company from the conclusion of the 31
st
 Annual General Meeting (AGM) of 

the Company held on September 26, 2017 till the conclusion of the 36
th

 Annual General Meeting to 

be held in the year 2022, subject to ratification of their appointment at every AGM.  
 

Since, the requirement to place the matter relating to appointment of Statutory Auditors for 

ratification by members at every Annual General Meeting is done away with vide The Companies 

(Amendment) Act, 2017 (No. 1 of 2018) readwith notification dated May 7, 2018 issued by the 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs, New Delhi, no resolution is proposed for ratification of appointment of 

Statutory Auditors of the Company, who were appointed at the Annual General Meeting held on 

26th September, 2017 to hold office from the conclusion of said meeting till the conclusion of 

Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 2022. 
 

B. Secretarial Auditors 

M/s. Deepak Bansal & Associates, Company Secretaries, were appointed as Secretarial Auditors to 

conduct Secretarial Audit of records and documents of the Company for financial year 2020-21. The 

Secretarial Audit Report is annexed to this Report as Annexure I and forms part of the Annual 

Report. 
 

C. Cost Auditors 

In terms of provision of section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 4 of the Companies 

(Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, Company was not required to maintain cost records for the 

financial year 2020-21.  
 

D. Internal Auditors 

M/s. B.R.Maheswari & Co., Chartered Accountants, (FRN 001035N), were Internal Auditors of the 

Company for the financial year 2020-21. Your Company has appointed M/s. B.R.Maheswari & Co., 

Chartered Accountants, as Internal Auditors of the Company for the financial year 2021-22.  
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EXPLANATIONS OR COMMENTS ON QUALIFICATION, RESERVATION OR ADVERSE REMARKS: 

a) By Statutory Auditors :  

There are no qualifications made by the Auditors in their Report which requires any explanation 

from the Board of Directors of the Company. The Notes to Accounts referred to in the Auditors’ 

Report are self-explanatory and do not call for any further comments. 

b) By Secretarial Auditors : 

There are no observations of Secretarial Auditors in their Report which requires any   

explanation from the Board of Directors of the Company. 
 

FRAUD REPORTING 

Neither the Statutory Auditors nor the Secretarial Auditors have brought to the notice of the Audit 

Committee or the Board of Directors or the Central Government the occurrence or brewing of any 

fraud in the Company. 
 

CODE OF PRACTICES AND PROCEDURES FOR FAIR DISCLOSURE OF UNPUBLISHED PRICE SENSITIVE 

INFORMATION 

Your Company has adopted the “Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished 

Price Sensitive Information” which, inter alia, prohibits purchase or sale of securities of the Company 

by Directors, employees and other connected persons while in possession of unpublished price 

sensitive information in relation to the Company. The Code requires pre-clearance for dealing in the 

Company’s shares and prohibits the purchase or sale of Company shares by the Directors and the 

designated employees while in possession of unpublished price sensitive information in relation to 

the Company and during the period when the Trading Window is closed. The Board is responsible for 

implementation of the Code. 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

The Audit Committee is constituted under compliance of provision of Section 177 of the Companies 

Act, 2013. The Broad terms of reference and power of Audit Committee are in line with the 

provisions contained under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

and the Companies Act, 2013.  
 

The role of Audit Committee, inter-alia, includes following: 

a) Reviewing the financial reporting process which includes reviewing the quarterly, half yearly, 

annual financial results and auditors report thereon, director’s responsibility statement.  

b) Reviewing changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and ensures compliance with 

legal and statutory requirements and integrity of the Company’s financial statements with 

proper disclosures of related party transactions. 

c) Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors and 

approval for their payments and also reviewing and monitoring their independence and 

performance, and effectiveness of audit process. 

d) Evaluation of internal control systems and its effectiveness and reviewing its adequacy. 

e) Reviewing internal audit and discussion with the internal auditors of any significant findings. 

f) Review the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where 

there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material 

nature and reporting the matter to the board. 

g) Review Whistle Blower mechanism and its effectiveness. 

h) Evaluating inter-corporate loans and investments and valuation of assets of the Company and 

ensuring effective risk management systems. 

 

During the financial year 2020-21, the Audit Committee comprises of 3 Non-executive Directors viz. 

Shri Anirudh Vimalkumar Goenka and Smt. Sanjana Bharat, Independent Directors and Shri Vasu 

Modi, Non-independent Director. Mr. Anirudh Vimalkumar Goenka is the Chairman of the Audit 
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Committee. The Members of the Audit Committee possess adequate knowledge of Accounts, Audit, 

Finance, etc. The Compliance Officer of the Company acts as the Secretary to the Audit Committee.  
 

Four meetings of the Audit Committee were held during the financial year 2020-21, on 31.07.2020, 

05.09.2020, 12.11.2020, and 12.02.2021. Further, the member of the Audit Committee as at 

31.03.2021 and their attendance of each member during the year are as given below: 

Sl. 

No. 

Name of the Member Category No. of Meetings 

Attended 

1 Shri Anirudh Vimalkumar Goenka Non-Executive Independent 4 

2 Smt. Sanjana Bharat Non-Executive Independent 4 

3 Shri Vasu Modi Non-Executive Non-Independent 4 

 

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) is constituted under compliance of provision 

of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Broad terms of reference and power of Nomination 

and Remuneration Committee are in line with the provisions contained under SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

The role of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, inter-alia, includes following: 

a) Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and 

independence of a director and recommend to the board of directors a policy relating to the 

remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees. 

b) Formulation of the criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and the 

board of directors; 

c) devising a policy on diversity of board of directors; 

d) identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in 

senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the board 

of directors their appointment and removal. 

e) whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the 

basis of the report of performance evaluation of independent directors. 

 

During the financial year 2020-21, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board 

comprises of 3 Non-executive Directors viz. Shri Anirudh Vimalkumar Goenka and Smt. Sanjana 

Bharat, Independent Directors and Shri Vasu Modi, Non-independent Director. Mr. Anirudh 

Vimalkumar Goenka is the Chairman of the Committee. Further, the member of the NRC Committee 

as at 31.03.2021 and their attendance of each Member during the year are as given below. The 

Compliance Officer acts as the Secretary to the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.  

 

One meeting of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee were held during the financial year 

2019-20 on 02.06.2020. The attendance of each Members of the Committee is as given below: 

Sl. 

No. 

Name of the Member Category No. of Meetings 

Attended 

1 Shri Anirudh Vimalkumar Goenka Non-Executive Independent 1 

2 Smt. Sanjana Bharat Non-Executive Independent 1 

3 Shri Vasu Modi Non-Executive Non-Independent 1 

 

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee is constituted under compliance of provision of Section 

178 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Broad terms of reference and power of Stakeholders’ 

Relationship Committee are in line with the provisions contained under SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the Companies Act, 2013. 
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The role of Stakeholders Relationship Committee, inter-alia, is to resolve the grievances of the 

security holders of the Company including complaints related to transfer and transmission of shares, 

dematerialization / rematerialisation  of shares, transposition of names, consolidation of shares, 

issue of duplicate share certificates, non-receipt of annual  report and non-receipt of declared 

dividends, if any, etc. 
 

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee, comprised of 3 directors as its Member viz. Shri Anirudh 

Vimalkumar Goenka and Smt. Sanjana Bharat, Independent Directors and Shri Vasu Modi, Non-

independent Director. Further, the member of the Stakeholders Relationship as at 31.03.2020 and 

their attendance of each Member during the year are as given below. The Compliance Officer acts as 

the Secretary to the Stakeholders Relationship Committee.  
 

During the year Committee met four times on 31.07.2020, 05.09.2020, 12.11.2020 and 12.02.2021 

and the attendance of the Members at the meeting was as follows: 

Sl. 

No. 

Name of the Member Category No. of Meetings 

Attended 

1 Shri Anirudh Vimalkumar Goenka Non-Executive Independent 4 

2 Smt. Sanjana Bharat Non-Executive Independent 4 

3 Shri Vasu Modi Non-Executive Non-Independent 4 

The Board has designated Ms. Vandana Gupta, Company Secretary of the Company as Compliance 

Officer of the Company. 

No. of shareholders’ complaints received upto 31st March, 2021   : Nil 

  No. of complaints not solved to the satisfaction of the shareholders  : Nil 

  No. of pending complaints       : Nil 
 

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS  

The Company has an Internal Control System, commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of 

its operations. To maintain its objectivity and independence, the Internal Audit function reports to 

the Chairman of the Audit Committee and to the Chairman and Managing Director of the Board. 

The Internal Audit Department monitors and evaluates the efficacy and adequacy of internal control 

system in the Company, its compliance with operating systems, accounting procedures and policies 

at all locations of the Company. Based on the report of internal audit function, process owners 

undertake corrective action in their respective areas and thereby strengthen the controls. Significant 

audit observations and recommendations along with corrective actions thereon are presented to the 

Audit Committee and the Board. 
 

MATERIAL CHANGES AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 

There have been no material changes and commitments which can affect the financial position of 

the company between the end of the period under review and date of this report. 
 

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

In terms of regulation 15(2) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015, compliance under regulations 21 was not applicable to the Company during financial year 

2020-21 as paid-up share capital of the Company as on the financial year ended on 31
st
 March, 2020 

is less than Rs. 10 crore and net-worth of the Company is also less than Rs. 25 crore, hence Risk 

Management Committee has not been constituted.  
 

However, the Board of Directors of your Company has, on recommendation of the Audit Committee 

framed and adopted a policy on Risk Management of the Company. Major risks identified by the 

businesses and functions are systematically addressed through mitigating actions on a continuing 

basis. 
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DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 

The Company does not have any Subsidiary Company, Associate Company or Joint Venture 

Company.  The Company is not a Subsidiary Company of any other Company. 
 

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGMENTS WITH RELATED PARTY  

All related party transactions done by the Company during the financial year were at arm’s length 

and in ordinary course of business. All related party transactions were placed in the meetings of 

Audit Committee and the Board of Directors for their necessary review and approval. During the 

financial year your Company has not entered into any material transaction as mentioned in the 

Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015 with any of its related parties which may have potential conflict with the interest of the 

Company at large. Disclosures pursuant to Accounting Standards on related party transactions have 

been made in the note no. 26 to the Financial Statements.  

 

PARTICULARS OF LOAN, GUARANTEES, SECURITIES AND INVESTMENTS 

The Company has not given any loan, guarantee or provided any security under Section 186 of the 

Companies Act, 2013. Disclosure on details of investments made during the financial years which are 

covered under provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, have been made in the note 

no. 29 to the Financial Statements.  

 

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT & MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR 

TRIBUNAL 

There are no significant material orders passed by the Regulators / Courts which would impact the 

going concern status of the Company and its future operations. There are no proceedings initiated 

/pending against your Company under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. There was no 

instance of one time settlement with any Bank or Financial Institution. 

 

WHISTLE BLOWER/VIGIL MECHANISM 

Your Company has an effective Vigil Mechanism system which is embedded in its Code of Conduct to 

report to the management instances of unethical behaviour, actual or suspected, fraud or violation 

of the Company’s code of conduct or ethics policy. The Code of Conduct of your Company serves as a 

guide for daily business interactions, reflecting your Company’s standard for appropriate behavior 

and living Corporate Values. The Vigil Mechanism provides a mechanism for employees of the 

Company to approach the Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Company. 

 

FORMAL EVALUATION OF BOARD, COMMITTEES & DIRECTORS’ PERFORMANCE  

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Board has through mutual discussions carried out 

an annual evaluation of its own performance, the directors individually as well as the evaluation of 

the working of its Committees.  

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) evaluated the performance of the individual 

directors on the basis of the criteria such as the contribution of the individual director to the Board 

and committee meetings like preparedness on the issues to be discussed, meaningful and 

constructive contribution and inputs in meetings, etc.  

In a separate meeting of independent Directors, performance of non-independent directors, 

performance of the board as a whole and performance of the Chairman was reviewed, taking into 

account the views of executive directors and non-executive directors of the company. 
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CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGLY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND 

OUTGO 

Information in accordance with the provisions of Section 134 (3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 

read with Rule 8 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 regarding conservation of energy, technology 

absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo for the year ended 31
st
 March, 2021 is annexed 

to this report as Annexure II and forms part of this report. 

 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

In terms of provision of regulation 15(2) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, compliance with the Corporate Governance provisions as specified under 

regulations 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 25, 26 , 27 and clause (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of 

regulation 46 and para C, D and E of Schedule V was not applicable to the Company as paid-up share 

capital of the Company is less than Rs. 10 crore and net-worth of the Company is less than  Rs. 25 

crore, as on the financial year ended on 31
st
 March, 2020. However, in view of provision of 

regulation 15(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015, the 

Company continued to make compliances with the applicable provisions under the Companies Act, 

2013 during financial year 2020-21. 

 

Subsequently, as on end date of FY 2020-21 i.e. 31
st

 March, 2021 upon publication of Audited 

Financial Results of the Company for the year ended 31
st
 March, 2021, net-worth of the Company 

exceeds Rs. 25 crore and therefore exemption under regulation 15(2) of SEBI (LODR), Regulations, 

2015 stands withdrawn. In terms of proviso of said regulation, Company is required to comply with 

the exempted regulation within six months from the date of its applicability. Accordingly, the 

Company has implemented applicability of Corporate Governance clauses under the said regulation 

from quarter starting from 1
st

 July, 2021. 

 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

In terms of regulation 34(2)(e) and para B of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015, Management Discussion & Analysis Report is annexed to 

this report as Annexure III and forms part of this Annual Report. 

 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES  

The information required under Rule 5 (2) and (3) of The Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, is not required as there was no employee on 

the payroll of the Company receiving remuneration in excess of limit prescribed under the said rules. 

 

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION POLICY 

The broad terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) of the 

Company are as under: 

a) To identify suitable persons, interview them, if necessary, and recommend them as suitable 

candidates to fill up vacancies on the Board or augment the Board and Senior Management.  

b) To develop a policy to ensure the optimum composition of the Board of Directors ensuring a 

mix of knowledge, experience and expertise from diversified fields of knowledge i.e. Policy 

on Board Diversity. The Policy also intends to add professionalism and objectivity in the 

process of deciding Board membership. 

c) To lay down criteria for the evaluation of the Board. 

d) To formulate a criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence 

of a Director and recommend to the Board a Policy thereon. 

e) To formulate criteria for evaluation of Directors. 
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The company has adopted a Nomination and Remuneration Policy as recommended by “NRC” and 

the objective of Nomination and Remuneration Policy is to ensure rationale and objectivity in the 

remuneration of the Directors, Senior Management & employees of the Company. The Policy also 

intends to bring in a pragmatic methodology in screening of candidates who may be recommended 

to the position of Directors and to establish effective evaluation criteria to evaluate the performance 

of every Director and the overall Board of the Company. 

 

The Policy also serves as a guiding principle to ensure good Corporate Governance as well as to 

provide sustainability to the Board of Directors of the Company   

 

DISCLOSURE OF RATIO OF REMUNERATION OF DIRECTOR’S & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL ETC. 

In terms of provision of Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the details of the 

ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median employee’s remuneration and such other 

details as prescribed therein is annexed to this report as Annexure IV and forms part of this Annual 

Report. 
 

During the financial year 2020-21, the company did not pay any remuneration to the Managing 

Director and other directors of the company. 
 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES 

The provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 were not applicable on the Company for 

the FY 2020-21, as your Company did not meet any of the applicability criteria as specified under 

Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014. 
 

DISCLOSURE UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE, (PREVENTION, 

PROHIBITION & REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 

In accordance with the provision of The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 

Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 the Company has adopted a policy for prevention of Sexual 

Harassment of Women at workplace and has set up Committee for implementation of said policy. 

Hence, the company has complied with provisions relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints 

Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 

Redressal) Act, 2013. During the year Company has not received any complaint of harassment. 
 

GREEN INITIATIVE 

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Company welcomes and supports the ‘Green Initiative’ taken 

by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India (MCA), by its recent Circulars, enabling 

electronic delivery of documents including the Annual Report to shareholders at their e-mail address 

registered with the Depository Participants(DPs)/Company/Registrars & Share Transfer Agents. 
 

Shareholders who have not registered their e-mail addresses so far are requested to register their e-

mail addresses. Those holding shares in DEMAT form can register their e-mail address with their 

concerned DPs. Shareholders who hold shares in physical form are requested to register their e-mail 

addresses with Skyline Financial Services Pvt. Ltd., by sending a letter duly signed by the first/sole 

holder quoting details of Folio Number. 

 

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS 

Based on the framework of internal financial controls and compliance systems established and 

maintained by the Company, work performed by the internal, statutory, cost auditors, secretarial 

auditors and external consultants and the reviews performed by Management and the relevant 

Board Committees, including the Audit Committee, the Board is of the opinion that the Company’s 

internal financial controls were adequate and effective during the financial year 2020-21. 
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SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 

Your Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of 

Companies Secretaries of India during the year. 

 

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, your Directors in respect of the Audited 

Annual Accounts for the year ended 31
st
 March, 2021, to the best of their knowledge and ability, 

hereby state that : 

(i) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been 

followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures; 

(ii) They have, selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view 

of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year ended on March 31, 

2021 and of the profit of the Company for the year ended on that date; 

(iii) They have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 

records in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the 

assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

(iv) They have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis. 

(v) They have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such 

internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.  

(vi) They have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable 

laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

 

APPRECIATION & ACKNOWLEGEMENT 

Your Directors take this opportunity to express their appreciation for the co-operation and 

assistance received from the Central Government, the State Government, the Financial Institutions, 

Banks as well as the Shareholders during the year under review. Your Directors also with the place 

on record their appreciation of the devoted and dedicated service rendered by all the employees of 

your Company. 

For and behalf of the Board of Directors 

For NATIONAL GENERAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

 

           Sd/- 

Place : New Delhi                   Pawan Kumar Modi 

Date  : 13.08.2021                       Chairman and Managing Director 

    DIN : 00051679 
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Annexure I 

 

Secretarial Audit Report 

 

FORM NO. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2021 

(Pursuant to Section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014) 

 

 

To, 

The Members, 

National General Industries Limited  

(CIN : L74899DL1987PLC026617) 

3
rd

 Floor, Surya Plaza,  

K-185/1, Sarai Julena, 

New Friends Colony,  

New Delhi – 110025 

 

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and 

the adherence to good corporate practices by National General Industries Limited (hereinafter called 

the ‘Company’). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for 

evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

 

Based on our verification of Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and 

other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the company, its 

officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby 

report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year 

ended on 31
st

 March 2021 (‘Audit Period’) complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder 

and also that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the 

extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter alongwith Annexure-A enclosed 

to this report: 

 

We have examined in the best possible manner, through virtual platform, the books, papers, minute 

books, forms and returns filed and other records made available to us and maintained by the 

Company for the financial year ended on 31st March 2021 according to the provisions of: 

 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) and the rules made there under; 

(ii) The Securities Contract (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder; 

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to 

the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial 

Borrowings were not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period; 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board 

of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) 

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 

2015; 
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(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2009 were not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period; 

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and 

Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 and The Securities and Exchange 

Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 notified on 28 October 

2014 were not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period; 

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 

Regulations, 2008 were not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period; 

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer 

Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client were no 

applicable as the Company is not registered as Registrar to an issue and Share Transfer 

Agent during the Audit period; 

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 

were not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period; and 

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 were 

not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period; 

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

 

We further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on 

examination of the relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof, on test-check basis, the 

Company has complied with the following laws and rules made thereunder, as applicable specifically 

to the Company. 

1) Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981; 

2) Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974; 

3) Environment Protection Act, 1986; 

4) Factories Act, 1948 and allied State Laws. 

 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

(i) Secretarial Standards SS-1 and SS-2 issued and notified by The Institute of Company 

Secretaries of India; 

(ii) Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with BSE Limited. 

 

During the period under review and as per the explanations and clarifications given to us and the 

representations made by the Management, the Company has complied with the provisions of the 

Act, Rules, Regulations and Guidelines mentioned above. 

 

We further report that: 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 

Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. There was change in the composition 

of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review.  

 

Adequate notice was given to all Directors at least seven days in advance to schedule the Board 

Meetings. Agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent in advance, and a system exists for 

seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting 

and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

 

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out unanimously as recorded in 

the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, as the case may 

be. 
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We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate 

with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable 

laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

 

We further report that during the audit period the Company had no significant events which had 

bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, 

guidelines etc.  

For Deepak Bansal & Associates 

Company Secretaries 

Sd/-    

Place : New Delhi                                          (Deepak Bansal) 

Dated : 13.08.2021                                     Proprietor 

                               UDIN : F003736C000779381  

FCS : 3736  

       C.P. No. : 7433 

 

This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and Forms an 

integral part of this report. 

Annexure A 

To, 

The Members 

National General Industries Limited (CIN : L74899DL1987PLC026617) 

3
rd

 Floor, Surya Plaza, K-185/1, Sarai Julena, 

New Friends Colony, New Delhi – 110025 

 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 

2. We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 

assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification 

was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. We 

believe that the process and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our 

opinion. 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of 

Account of the Company. 

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the 

Compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 

5. The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, 

standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the 

verification of procedure on test basis. 

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company 

nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of 

the Company. 

For Deepak Bansal & Associates 

Company Secretaries 

Sd/-         

Place : New Delhi                                          (Deepak Bansal) 

Dated : 13.08.2021                                     Proprietor 

UDIN : F003736C000779381 

                              FCS : 3736  

       C.P. No. : 7433 
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Annexure II 

Conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption 

 

A.  Conservation of Energy 

 (i)  The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy  

During the year under review, wherever possible, energy conservation measures have been 

taken. 

 

 (ii)  The steps taken for utilizing alternate sources of energy 

During the year under review, the Company is using furnace oil for the steel manufacturing 

activities of the Company and no steps were taken for utilizing alternate source of energy. 

 

 (iii) Capital Investment on energy conservation equipment 

During the year under review, no capital investment was made on energy conservation 

equipment. However, efforts to conserve and optimize the use of energy through improved 

operational methods and other means will continue. 

 

B.  Technology Absorption 

 (i)  Efforts made for technology absorption 

The Company is using latest techniques for production. Efforts are being made to make the 

maximum use of the available infrastructure, at the same time innovating new techniques to 

bring about efficiency as well as economy in different areas. Employees are given 

appropriate training of and on the job, to enable them to achieve the planned performance. 

 

(ii) Benefit derived 

Through all these efforts benefits derived are better utilization of the available resources, 

product improvement and development, cost reduction, better overall efficiency on one side 

and clean environment and safety of employees on the other. 

 

(iii) Expenditure on Research & Development, if any 

During the year under review, no expense was incurred by the Company on research and 

development. 

 

(iv) Details of Technologies 

The Company is using latest techniques for production. 

 

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARININGS AND OUTGO 

The foreign exchange Earnings and Outgo during the year are as under:  

Particulars As on 31st March, 2021 As on 31st March, 2020 

Foreign Exchange Earnings Nil Nil 

Foreign Exchange Outgo Nil Nil 
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Annexure III 

 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 
 

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENT 

This report contains forward-looking statements, which may be identified by their use of words like 

‘plans’, ‘expects’, ‘will, ‘anticipates’, ‘believes’, ‘intends’, ‘projects’, ‘estimates’ or other words of 

similar meaning. All statements that address expectation of projections about the future, including 

but not limited to statements about the Company’s strategy for growth, product development, 

market position, expenditures and financial results are forward-looking statements. Forward-looking 

statements are based on certain assumptions and expectations of future events. The Company 

cannot guarantee that these assumptions and expectations are accurate or will be realized. The 

Company’s actual results, performance or achievements could, thus differ materially from those 

projected in any such forward-looking statements. The Company assumes no responsibility to publicly 

amend, modify or revise any forward-looking statements on the basis of any subsequent 

developments, information or events. 
 

OVERVIEW OF FY 2020-21 

National General Industries Limited (‘The Company’) is engaged in the production and selling of 

Steel. The Company has manufacturing facilities at Ghaziabad, Uttar Pradesh. During the year under 

review the Company sold off its casting unit at Bhiwadi.. 
 

GLOBAL ECONOMY 

The year 2020 was an exceptional one for the world economy, as it grappled with the COVID-19 

outbreak and the resultant challenges to public health, lockdowns and a near closure of international 

borders for an extended period. Trade was massively disrupted, affecting global supply chains, and 

governments across the world focused on health infrastructure and ancillary priorities. Large-scale 

stimulus measures were announced by major economies to minimise the economic fallout, support 

organisations and individuals, save jobs, and provide some succour from the drastic implications of 

an extended period of economic downturn. However, there was an irreversible change in the way of 

working, viability of some industries, nature of some jobs and aspects of social life. At the same time, 

it became clear that the digital transition was not optional anymore, and that e-commerce, 

connectivity, collaboration solutions were an imperative in the new post-pandemic economy. Strong 

legacy businesses showed resilience, with consumer demand and confidence rebounding gradually. 

However, quality of the business, nimble-footedness and ability to adapt became core differentiators 

In the second half of CY 2020, as the virus began to lose potency, and its severity dropped, 

restrictions began to be lifted across the world. Few green shoots became visible across countries 

and sectors as the world began to embrace the new reality and prepared for business- as-usual. The 

unprecedented global race to make a vaccine saw inspiring outcomes, and the approval, 

commercialisation and mass production of multiple vaccines proved to be, quite literally, a shot in 

the arm. As a result, a decline of 3.3% in global GDP for CY 2020 vs earlier estimate of a contraction 

of 3.5% and a more severe contraction of 4.4% in October 2020.  

INDIAN ECONOMY 

FY 2020-21 began on a very weak note for India, as the onset of the pandemic triggered panic and 

brought most economic activities to a near halt in the first quarter. While annual estimates of 

contraction varied (and kept improving), the first quarter saw a 23.4% decline in GDP. With the 

second quarter also being one of decline, albeit at a slower pace than that in the first, the economy 

entered a technical recession with two successive quarters of contraction. Following fiscal and 

monetary measures undertaken by the government and the Reserve Bank of India (RBI), India’s 
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economic growth returned to positive territory, with pent-up demand playing out and festive 

demand coming on stream. Consequently, the full-year GDP saw a net decline of just about 7.3%, far 

lesser than the initial fears.  

Protecting lives and livelihoods became the core priority of the government, while implementing 

business continuity plans and adapting to the new normal became the priority for industry. India’s 

resilience and ability to bounce back was evident, and this continues to provide confidence to the 

industry to stay invested in its future. Almost all core sector industries seemed confident of reaching 

pre-COVID levels of output and revenue.  

OUTLOOK 

The outlook for CY 2021 is robust as governments across the US, Europe, Japan, Korea, Russia and 

China are providing strong support to bring the domestic economy engine roaring back to action. A 

significant part of this support comes in the form of increased infrastructure spend, and liquidity 

injections, which directly help boost steel demand. As a result, global finished steel demand is 

expected to recover in CY 2021 to 1,874 MnT, an increase of 5.8% over CY 2020. In CY 2022, this 

figure is expected to touch 1,924.6 MnT, at a 2.7% yearly increase.  

 

In the developed economies, manufacturing is showing some early signs of recovery and if the 

second wave of infections can be brought under control progressively, business activities can be 

expected to stabilise. Evolution of the virus, progress of vaccinations, withdrawal of supportive fiscal 

and monetary policies and geopolitics pose broad risks to the outlook.  

In Q1 FY 2020-21, the steel mills faced shortage of labour, supply chain disruptions and truncated 

utilisation levels, besides a plummeting of demand. As a result, in the first half, the industry 

cumulatively produced 43.63 MnT of crude steel, 21% lower compared to H1 FY2020-21 However, 

the industry did well to increase its exports during this period, in order to offset the soft domestic 

demand. Nevertheless, as the year progressed, the economy started to gradually open up and the 

pent-up demand started to materialise, which augured well for the steel segment. 

The Indian steel industry is seeing large-scale consolidation, and this presents a conducive operating 

environment for existing players. Post 2015, investment in the steel sector had hit a roadblock owing 

to Chinese dumping, which challenged the pricing environment. 

The future of the Indian steel industry appears encouraging. Indian steel consumption stood at 94.14 

MnT at the end of FY 2020-21, down 6% y-o-y. In FY 2021-22, the demand is expected to touch 110 

MnT, presenting an incremental requirement of 16 MnT over that of last year. 

The Union Budget 2021-22 has outlined a strong focus on infrastructure development (a 34.5% 

improvement over the last Budget’s estimates) giving significant impetus to steel as an industry. The 

Budget also announced several initiatives such as affordable housing, expansion of road and railway 

networks, development of domestic shipbuilding industry and opening up of the defence sector for 

private participation, all of which are expected to create massive demand for steel in the country. 

The Finance Minister in her budget proposal, also mentioned the reduction of customs duty 

uniformly to 7.5% on semis, flat, and long products of non-alloy, alloy and stainless steel. To provide 

relief to metal recyclers — mostly MSMEs — duty on steel scrap is exempted until March 31, 2022. 

The Centre has also removed anti- dumping and countervailing duties levied on certain steel 

products until September 30, 2021. 

In Q4 FY 2020-21, India’s finished steel consumption grew by 17.1% as compared to that of Q4 FY 

2019-20. Though the domestic market may face pressure owing to the second phase of the 

pandemic, a gradual recovery in domestic demand is expected in the second half of FY 2021-22. 

While the timing and trajectory of the reopening of the Indian economy will follow the decline in 
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cases, the government’s pro-growth policies and the Union Budget 2021-22 should help the 

economy recover to levels prior to the onset of the second wave. 

 

OPPORTUNITIES, THREATS AND RISKS 

The COVID-19 pandemic is regarded as a ‘black swan’ event for the global economy and humanity. 

But the global and Indian economies have shown a remarkable capacity to bounce back rapidly, 

supported by strong fiscal and monetary stimuli. Even though countries across the globe are now 

combating fresh COVID-19 outbreaks, the economic environment is expected to stay resilient. 

Resurgence of infection is undoubtedly a dampener on economic recovery, but much depends on 

the severity of the wave and extent of the lockdowns that need to be imposed. As experience shows, 

subsequent lockdowns have generally been less stringent and more localised, with the vaccination 

pace picking up across the world.  

 

As for the Indian economy, the high frequency indicators have been positive. Sufficiently supported 

by government spending and resilient rural consumption, manufacturing – especially consumer non-

durables – and some categories of services, such as passenger vehicles and railway freight, the 

economy appears to be on its way to a gradual recovery. Medical experts believe that the current 

wave may have peaked in India, and one can expect a reduction in cases and a gradual easing of 

lockdowns. Vaccinations will be a major counter to the virus, helping reduce mutations and 

subsequent waves. 

 

Steel demand bounced back strongly in India as well as globally. Supply, however, is constrained due 

to under investments in the sector for the past several years, leading to improved realisations. With 

the Government of India’s planned outlay for public infrastructure, the steel industry is expected to 

witness steady demand.  

 

India’s growing urban infrastructure and manufacturing sectors indicate that demand for steel is 

likely to remain robust in the coming years. This will be further supported by government initiatives, 

such as providing affordable housing, expanding road and rail way networks and developing the 

domestic shipbuilding industry. In the Union Budget 2021-22, the government proposed a capital 

expenditure of Rs. 5.54 lakhs crores, with a push for infrastructure. Demand for steel is thus 

projected to remain robust in the coming years. The Company is in step with the country’s aspiration 

to become one of the fastest growing economies in the world. 

 

SEGMENT-WISE PERFORMANCE 

A detailed note on the segment-wise performance is given under note no. 24 of the Financial 

Statement of the Company.  
 

RISKS AND CONCERNS 

Technology obsolescence is an inherent business risk in a fast changing world and speed of change 

and adaptability is crucial for survival of business. Though aggressive cost cutting and addition to the 

product mix to incorporate more value-added products are still the present strengths of the 

Company, the Company is taking utmost care to ensure very high quality of products.  
 

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM 

A robust system of internal control, commensurate with the size and nature of its business, forms an 

integral part of the Company’s policies. The Company has a proper and adequate system of internal 

control commensurate with the size and nature of its business. The accounting records are adequate 

for preparation of financial statements and other financial information. The adequacy and 

effectiveness of internal controls across the various business, as well as compliance with laid down 
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systems and policies are regularly monitored by your Company’s internal audit process. The Audit 

Committee of Board, which met four times during the year, reviewed the financial disclosures. 
 

The Company has appointed M/s B.R.Maheswari & Co., Chartered Accountants, (FRN 001035N), 

New Delhi to oversee and carry out internal audit of its activities. The internal audit reports are 

reviewed by the Audit Committee periodically. Based on its evaluation (as defined in section 177 of 

Companies Act 2013 and Clause 18 of SEBI Regulations 2015), the audit committee has concluded 

that as on March 31, 2021, your internal financial controls were adequate and operating effectively. 
 

FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE 

The financial performance of the Company for the financial year ended on 31
st

 March, 2021 and          

31
st

 March, 2020 are summarized below:- 

(Amount in Rupees) 

Particulars 
    For the year ended 

    31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20 

INCOME: 
 

      

Revenue from operations 
 

     185,763,668    196,014,089 

Other Income 
 

         69,302,485        3,600,803 

  
 

     255,066,153    199,614,892  

EXPENSES: 
 

      

Cost of materials consumed 
 

     176,902,025    171,369,516 

Purchase of Stock-in-Trade 
 

      

Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and 

Stock-in-Trade 
     (5,123,165)      4,294,556 

Employee benefit expense 
 

       11,233,873      15,211,640 

Financial costs 
 

         1,463,788        2,418,708 

Depreciation and amortization expense 
 

         4,198,581         5,025,921  

Other expenses 
 

       9,660,793      10,572,766 

  
 

     198,335,894     208,893,106 

Profit before exceptional  items and tax 
 

         56,730,258      (9,278,214) 

Exceptional Items 
 

                      -                        -    

PROFIT BEFORE TAX 
 

         56,730,258     (9,278,214) 

TAX EXPENSES: 
 

      

  Current tax 
 

        -       - 

  Current tax - Prior Year 
 

  -              (36,362)   

  MAT Credit 
 

                      -                       -   

  MAT Credit - Prior Year 
 

                      -                       -   

  Deferred tax 
 

       (1,312,351)         (333,762) 

Profit for the period from continuing operations  
 

         58,042,609     (8,908,090) 

PROFIT AFTER TAX 
 

         58,042,609       (8,908,090)  

Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) 
 

      

 (A)Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss 
 

  - - 

 (B)Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 
 

         11,912,872    (10,206,549) 

Income tax relating to this 
 

          1,943,241      2,653,703 

Total  Other Comprehensive Income/(loss) for the year 
 

         9,969,631      (7,552,846) 

Total Comprehensive Income/(loss) for the year 
 

       68,012,240   (16,460,936) 
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS 

The Highlights of the Company’s performance for the year ended on March 31, 2021 are as under: 

 Value of Sales and Services decreased by 5.23% to Rs. 1857.64 lakhs (PY Rs. 1960.14 lakhs). 

 Value of Other Income increased to Rs. 134.23 lakhs (PY Rs. 36.01 lakhs) apart from Rs. 558.79 

lakhs on sale of steel casting unit. 

 PBDIT increased to Rs. 65.13 lakhs (PY loss of Rs. 18.33 lakhs) apart from Rs. 558.79 lakhs on 

sale of steel casting unit..  

 PBT increased to Rs. 8.51 lakhs (PY loss of Rs. 92.78 lakhs) apart from Rs. 558.79 lakhs on sale of 

steel casting unit. 

 Net Profit increased to Rs. 21.63 lakhs (PY loss of Rs. 89.08 lakhs) apart from Rs. 558.79 lakhs on 

sale of steel casting unit. 

 

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS AND HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT 

Industrial relations during the year under review were cordial and peaceful with all the employees 

on the payroll of the Company as at end of the financial year 2020-21. The management wishes to 

place on record, the excellent cooperation and contribution made by the employees, at all levels of 

the organization to the continued growth of the Company. There was constant focus on all round 

organizational development.  

 

Considering human resources as most important resource, the major thrust was on recruiting highly 

qualified executives in various departments and also recruiting highly skilled workers to strengthen 

the production. Various training programs including visionary exercises were conducted for personal 

as well as professional development of the employees. The Company’s industrial relations continued 

to be harmonious during the year under review. 

For and behalf of the Board of Directors 

For NATIONAL GENERAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

   

            Sd/- 

Place : New Delhi                  Pawan Kumar Modi 

Date  : 13.08.2021                 Chairman and Managing Director 

                 DIN : 00051679 
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Annexure IV 

 

Details pertaining to Remuneration as required under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 

read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 

Rules, 2014. 

i) The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the 

employees of the company for the financial year cannot be ascertained as no remuneration 

was paid to any of the Directors of the company. 

ii) There was no percentage increase in the remuneration paid to Director, Chief Financial 

Officer and Company Secretary in the financial year. 

iii) There was approximately 0% increase in the median remuneration of employees in the 

financial year.  

iv) There were 39 (Thirty Nine) permanent employees on the rolls of the Company. 

v) Since no managerial remuneration was paid toward, hence information with respect to 

average percentile increase made in the salaries of employees others than the managerial 

personnel is not available. 

 

It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration during the year ended 31
st
 March, 2021 is paid as per the 

Remuneration Policy of the Company.  

For and behalf of the Board of Directors 

For NATIONAL GENERAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

   

            Sd/- 

Place : New Delhi                  Pawan Kumar Modi 

Date  : 13.08.2021                 Chairman and Managing Director 

                                          DIN : 00051679 
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Independent Auditors’ Report 

To, 

The Members of 

M/s NATIONAL GENERAL INDUSTRIES LTD. 

New Delhi. 
 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Ind AS financial statements of M/s NATIONAL 

GENERAL INDUSTRIES LTD. (the Company), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, 

the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement 

and the Statement of Change in Equity for the year then ended and a summary of significant 

accounting policies and other explanatory information. 
 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 

aforesaid Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements give the information required by the Act in the 

manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Ind AS accounting principles 

generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2021, its profit 

including Other Comprehensive Income, its Cash Flows and the Statement of Change in Equity for 

the year ended on that date. 
 

Basis of Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 

143(10) of the Company Act 2013, Our responsibilities under those Standard are further described in 

the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial statement section of 

our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by 

ICAI, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 

appropriate to provide a basis of opinion. 
 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in 

our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the 

context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and 

we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 
 

Emphasis of Matter 

We draw attention to the following matters in the notes to Financial Statements: 

The Note 33 & 34 related to preparation of standalone financial statement which explains Covid 19 

has caused significant auditing and accounting challenges. Once a challenge being the management 

was not able to conduct the physical counting of inventory on regular periodic interval, however 

physical counting for the post lockdown period was conducted time to time. Further Covid 19 has 

caused significant disruption to businesses across India. The management has considered the 

possible effects, if any, that may impact the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment, 

investments, inventories, receivables, other current assets. In making the assumptions and estimates 

relating to the uncertainties as at the balance sheet date in relation to the recoverable amounts, the 

management has considered subsequent events, internal and external information and evaluated 

economic conditions prevailing as at the date of approval of these financials results. The 

management expects no impairment to the carrying amounts of these assets. The management will 

continue to closely monitor any changes to future economic conditions and assess its impact on the 

operations. 

Some of the Debtors and Creditors balances are subject to Confirmation from the Parties, although 

mails have been sent for confirming the same. “Our Opinion is not modified in respect of this 

matter”. 
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Other Matter 

Due to spreading of COVID-19 across India, the Government Authorities imposed a corona lockdown 

in April 2021 across State which is still going on with relaxations in parts. This has resulted in 

restriction on physical visit to client locations and the need for carrying alternative audit procedures 

as per the Standards on Auditing prescribed by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). 

 

In view of above stated situation, the entire audit was carried out based on remote access of the 

data as provided by the management. This has been carried out based on the advisory on “Specific 

Considerations while conducting Distance Audit / Remote Audit / Online Audit under current Covid-

19 situation” issued by the Auditing and Assurance Standards Board of ICAI. We have been 

represented by the management that the data provided for our audit purposes is correct, complete, 

and reliable and are directly generated by the accounting system of the Company without any 

further manual modifications. 

 

We bring to the attention of users that the audit of the financial statements has been performed in 

the aforesaid conditions. 

 

Information Other than the Financial Statement and Auditor’s Report Thereon 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information 

comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report 

including Annexure to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and 

Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the standalone financial statement and our 

auditor’s report thereon. 

 

Our opinion on the financial statement does not cover the other information and we do not express 

and form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

 

In connection with our audit of financial statement, our responsibility is to read the other 

information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistence 

with the financial statement or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 

materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 

misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to 

report in this regard. 

 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true 

and fair view of the Financial Position, Financial Performance including Other Comprehensive 

Income, Cash flows and the Statement of Change in Equity of the Company in accordance with the 

accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 

specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Accounting Standards) Rule, 2015, as 

amended. 

 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 

provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting 

frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 

maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the 

accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation 

of the Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 
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whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the 

Standalone Ind AS financial statement by the Directors of the Company, as aforesaid. 

 

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the 

Company’s ability to continue as agoing concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 

concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to 

liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. That Board 

of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Ind AS financial 

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 

issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 

but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 

misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 

material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Standalone Ind AS financial statements. 

 

A further description of the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial 

statement is included in Annexure A. This description forms part of our auditor’s report. 

 

Our Opinion on the Standalone Ind AS financial statement, and our report on Other Legal and 

Regulatory Requirement below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our 

reliance on the work done and the reports of the others auditors and the financial statement / 

financial information certified by the Management.  

 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central 

Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the 

Annexure B statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent 

applicable: 

 

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid 

Standalone Ind AS financial statement; 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the 

aforesaid Standalone Ind AS financial Statement have been kept by the Company so far as it 

appears from our examination of those books; 

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive 

Income,the Statement of Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with 

by this Report are inagreement with the books of account; 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS financial statement comply with the Indian 

Accounting Standards specified underSection 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian 

Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended; 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 

2021, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 

March 31, 2021, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act; 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 

company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in 
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Annexure C; our report express an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operative 

effectiveness of the company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting and 

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with 

the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of 

our information and according to the explanations given to us the remuneration paid by the 

company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of 

the Act. 

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with 

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of 

our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

 

a. The Company has no pending litigations having impact on its financial statements. 

b. The Company did not have any long-term contract including derivative contracts which 

may lead to any foreseeable losses. 

c. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the 

Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

For N R & Company 

   Chartered Accountants 

FRN – 015095C 

Sd/- 

Place: New Delhi                                Naveen Sawhney 

Dated: 30.06.2021                       Partner 

                            Membership No.073713 

UDIN: 21073713AAAAAG4245 
 

Annexure ‘A’ to Auditors Report 

Responsibilities for Audit of Ind AS Financial Statement 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs we exercise professional judgment and maintain 

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Ind AS financial 

statements whether due to fraud or error design and perform audit procedures responsive to 

those risks and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 

one resulting from error as fraud may involve collusion forgery intentional omissions 

misrepresentations or the override of internal control. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies 

Act 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has 

adequate internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statement in place and the 

operating effectiveness of such controls. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting 

and based on the audit evidence obtained whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 

or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going 

concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists we are required to draw attention in 

our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the Standalone Ind AS financial statements or if 

such disclosures are inadequate to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 

evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However future events or conditions 

may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 
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 Evaluate the overall presentation structure and content of the Standalone Ind AS financial 

statements including the disclosures and whether the Standalone Ind AS financial statements 

represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entity or 

business activities to express an opinion on the Standalone Ind AS financial statement. We are 

responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statement 

of such entries included in the financial statement of which we are the independent auditors. For 

the other entity included in the Standalone Ind AS financial Statement. 

 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, 

individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 

knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative 

materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the 

results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial 

statements. 

 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding among other matters the planned 

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 

internal control that we identify during our audit. 

 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 

relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 

where applicable, related safeguards. 

 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance we determine those matters 

that were of most significance in the audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements of the 

current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's 

report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when in extremely 

rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because 

the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest 

benefits of such communication. 

For N R & Company 

   Chartered Accountants 

FRN – 015095C 

Sd/- 

Place: New Delhi                              Naveen Sawhney         

Dated: 30.06.2021                   Partner 

                            Membership No.073713 

UDIN: 21073713AAAAAG4245 

ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO THE AUDITOR’S REPORT  

(Referred to in our Report of even date) 

The Annexure referred to in independent Auditor’s report to the members of the Company on the 

financial statements for the year ended 31
st

 March 2021, we report that : 

1) (a) The Company has maintained proper records though to be updated, showing full 

particulars including quantitative details and situation of its fixed assets. 

(b) As explained to us, the management has physically verified all the fixed assets during the 

year, in a phased periodical manner, which in our opinion is reasonable having regard to the 

size of the Company. We have been informed that no material discrepancies were noticed on 

such physical verification during the year. 
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(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held 

in the name of the Company. 

(2)   (a) The inventory has been physically verified during the year by the management in phased 

manner.  

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 

procedure of physical verification of inventory followed by the management is reasonable and 

adequate in relation to the size of the Company and the nature of its business. 

(c) The Company has maintained proper records of inventories. As explained to us, the 

discrepancies noticed on physical verification as compared to book records were not material 

and have been dealt with in the books of account.  

(3) According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not granted any 

loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms or other parties covered in the register 

required to be maintained under section 189 of the Act. Accordingly paragraph 3 (iii) of the 

order is not applicable. 

(4)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 

has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the loans 

and investments and providing guarantees and securities, as applicable.  

(5)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company 

has not accepted any deposits from the public. 

(6) In our opinion, Company is not required to maintain cost records under section 148(1) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 4 of the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Amendment 

Rules, 2014. 

(7)  (a) The Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including 

Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales tax, Service Tax, Duty of 

Custom, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues applicable to it 

with the appropriate authorities. 

(b)   According to the information and explanations given to us, no amounts payable in respect 

of Income-tax, Service Tax, Sales-tax, Duty of Custom, Duty of Excise, Cess and other aforesaid 

statutory dues were outstanding as at 31st March, 2021 for a period of more than six months 

from the date they became payable. 

(8) Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and explanation given by the 

management, we are of the opinion that the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loan 

to any bank or government, debenture holder or any financial institutional borrowing during 

the year. 

(9) The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer 

(including debt instruments) and term loans during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (ix) of 

the Order is not applicable.  

 

(10)  According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the 

Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our 

audit.  

(11)  According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the 

records of the Company, the Company has paid/provided for managerial remuneration in 

accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with 

Schedule V to the Act.  

(12) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is 

not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.  

(13)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of 

the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with 
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sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been 

disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.  

(14)  According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the 

records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private 

placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year.  

(15)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of 

the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with 

directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not 

applicable.  

(16)  The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India 

Act 1934.  

For N R & Company 

   Chartered Accountants 

FRN – 015095C 

Sd/- 

Place: New Delhi                              Naveen Sawhney         

Dated: 30.06.2021                   Partner 

                            Membership No.073713 

UDIN: 21073713AAAAAG4245 

Annexure - C to the Auditors’ Report 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)  

 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of National General 

Industries Ltd (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the financial 

statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.  

 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls  

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 

controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 

considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 

Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 

of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of 

adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 

efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its 

assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 

accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under 

the Companies Act, 2013.  

 

Auditors’ Responsibility  

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 

reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on 

Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the 

Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the 

Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both 

applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 

requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 

adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if 

such controls operated effectively in all material respects.  
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 

internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our 

audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of 

internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, 

and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the 

assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment 

of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  

 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 

for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.  

 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Financial 

Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 

company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures 

that: 

(1) pertains to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;  

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 

of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 

receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorization 

of management and directors of the company; and  

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 

acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the 

Financial Statements. 

 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting  

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including 

the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements 

due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the 

internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the 

internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in 

conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.  

 

Opinion  

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls 

system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 

operating effectively as at 31 March 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting 

criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated 

in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.  

For N R & Company 

   Chartered Accountants 

FRN – 015095C 

Sd/- 

Place: New Delhi                              Naveen Sawhney         

Dated: 30.06.2021                   Partner 

                            Membership No.073713 

UDIN: 21073713AAAAAG4245 
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1. Corporate information 

National General Industries Limited (‘The Company’) is engaged in manufacturing and selling of 

steel from its manufacturing facilities located at Ghaziabad. The company is operating its 

business through registered office located at New Delhi. 

 

2. Basis of preparation 

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for following 

assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value amount 

a) Certain financial assets and liabilities  

 

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared to comply with the Indian 

Accounting standards (‘Ind AS’), including the rules notified under the relevant provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013. 

 

Company’s financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is also its functional 

currency. 

 

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of financial statements are consistent with 

those of previous year. 

 

2.1 Summary of significant accounting policies 

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 

Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and 

accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises purchase price (net of Input 

Credit), borrowing costs if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of 

bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Any trade discounts and 

rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. 

(b) Depreciation/Amortization 

Depreciation is provided on Straight Line Method as per rates computed based on useful life 

prescribed in schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation on appreciation upon 

Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) is directly charged to Revaluation Reserve. No 

Amortization is being provided on leasehold land. 

(c) Impairment 

Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)are reviewed for impairment whenever events or 

changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amount may not be recoverable. An 

impairment loss is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss if the carrying amount of 

an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. 

(d) Use of estimates 

The preparation of financial statements is in conformity with (INDAS) requires the 

management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 

amount of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at 

the end of the reporting period. Although these estimate are based on the management’s 

best knowledge of current event and action. 

(e) Leases 

(i) Lease liability is initially recognized and measured at an amount equal to the present 

value of minimum lease payments during the lease term that are not yet paid. 

(ii) Right of use asset is recognized and measured at cost, consisting of initial measurement 

of lease liability plus any lease payments made to the lessor at or before the 

commencement date less any lease incentives received, initial estimate of the 

restoration costs and any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee.  
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(iii) The lease liability is measured in subsequent periods using the effective interest rate 

method. The right-of-use asset is depreciated in accordance with the requirements in 

Ind AS 16, Property, Plant and equipment. 

(iv) Recognition and measurement exemption are available for low-value assets and short 

term leases. Assets of low value include IT equipment or office furniture. No monetary 

threshold has been defined for low-value assets. Short-term leases are defined as leases 

with a lease term of 12 months or less. 

(f) Investments 

Investments that are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than a year are 

classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as Non-Current 

investments. Current and Non-Current investments are carried at fair value determined on 

an individual investment basis. Where Current investment are recognized at fair value its 

difference with cost is routed through profit and Loss a/c and Where Non-Current 

investment are recognized at fair value its difference with cost is routed through Other 

Comprehensive Income/ (Loss). 

(g) Borrowing Cost 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an 

asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are 

capitalized as part of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed 

in the period they occur. 

(h) Inventories 

Finished and semi-finished products produced and purchased by the Company are carried at 

lower of cost and net realizable value. Raw materials purchased are carried at cost. Store 

and spare parts are carried at cost. Cost has been determined by using the FIFO method. 

(i) Revenue Recognition 

(i)  Sale of goods: Revenue from sale of goods is recognized net of rebates and discounts on 

transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership to the buyer. 

(ii)  Income from Services: Revenue from services is accounted for in accordance with the 

terms of contracts, as and when these services are rendered. 

(iii) Interest: Revenue is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the 

amount outstanding and the rate applicable. 

(iv) Dividend: Dividend Income is recognized when right to receive is established. 

(j) Retirement and other benefits 

(i) Retirement benefits in the form of Provident Fund is a defined contribution scheme and 

the contributions are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the year when the 

contributions to respective funds are due. 

(ii) Gratuity liability is defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an 

actuarial valuation on projected unit credit (PUC) method made at the end of each 

financial year. 

(k) Tax Expenses 

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in 

Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in the 

comprehensive income or in equity. In which case, the tax is also recognized in other 

comprehensive income or equity. 

Current tax 

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from 

or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or 

substantively enacted at the Balance sheet date. 

Company has opted 115BAA during the financial year 2020-21 hence that no MAT is 

applicable to the company. 
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Deferred tax 

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets 

and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the 

computation of taxable profit. 

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in 

the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax 

laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

The carrying amount of Deferred tax liabilities and assets are reviewed at the end of each 

reporting period. 

(l) Earnings Per Share 

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year 

attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares 

outstanding during the year. 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, net profit or loss for the year 

attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding 

during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

(m) Contingent liability 

Contingent liability is not provided for in the accounts and is recognized by way of notes. 

(n) Financial Instruments 

i) Financial Assets 

A. Initial recognition and measurement 

All financial assets and liabilities are initially recognized at fair value. Transaction costs that 

are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities, 

which are not at fair value through profit or loss, are adjusted to the fair value on initial 

recognition. Purchase and sale of financial assets are recognised using trade date 

accounting. 

B. Subsequent measurement 

a) Financial assets carried at amortised cost (AC) 

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose 

objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual 

terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments 

of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

b) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 

A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective 

is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the 

contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 

solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

c) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at 

FVTPL. 

C. Other Equity Investments 

All other equity investments are measured at fair value, with value changes recognised in 

Statement of Profit and Loss, except for those equity investments for which the Company has 

elected to present the value changes in Other Comprehensive Income’. 

D. Impairment of financial assets 

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company uses ‘Expected Credit Loss’ (ECL) model, for 

evaluating impairment of financial assets other than those measured at fair value through 

profit and loss (FVTPL). 

Expected credit losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to: 
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The 12-months expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from those default 

events on the financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting 

date); or 

Full lifetime expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from all possible 

default events over the life of the financial instrument) 

For trade receivables Company applies ‘simplified approach’ which requires expected 

lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables. The Company uses 

historical default rates to determine impairment loss on the portfolio of trade receivables. At 

every reporting date these historical default rates are reviewed and changes in the forward 

looking estimates are analysed. 

For other assets, the Company uses 12 month ECL to provide for impairment loss where 

there is no significant increase in credit risk. If there is significant increase in credit risk full 

lifetime ECL is used. 

ii) Financial liabilities 

A. Initial recognition and measurement 

All financial liabilities are recognized at fair value and in case of loans, net of directly 

attributable cost. Fees of recurring nature are directly recognised in the Statement of Profit 

and Loss as finance cost. 

B. Subsequent measurement 

Financial liabilities are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method. For 

trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying 

amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments. 

a) Exemptions from retrospective application 

(i) Business combination exemption 

The Company has applied the exemption as provided in Ind AS 101 on non-application of Ind 

AS 103, “Business Combinations” to business combinations consummated prior to April 1, 

2015 (the “Transition Date”), pursuant to which Goodwill / capital reserve arising from a 

business combination has been stated at the carrying amount prior to the date of transition 

under Indian GAAP. The Company has also applied the exemption for past business 

combinations to acquisitions of investments in subsidiaries / associates / joint ventures 

consummated prior to the Transition Date. 

(ii) Share-based payment transactions 

Ind AS 101 encourages, but does not require, first time adopters to apply Ind AS 102 Share 

based Payment to equity instruments that were vested before the date of transition to Ind 

AS. The Company has elected not to apply Ind AS 102to options that vested prior to April 1, 

2015. 

(iii) Fair value as deemed cost exemption 

The Company has elected to measure items of property, plant and equipment and intangible 

assets at its carrying value at the transition date except for certain class of assets which are 

measured at fair value as deemed cost. 

(iv) Decommissioning liabilities 

The Company has elected to apply the transitional provision with respect to recognition of 

Decommissioning, Restoration and Similar Liabilities. 
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